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This preliminary prospectus supplement is not complete and may be changed. This prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus are not an offer to sell these notes and are not soliciting an offer to buy these notes in any
state where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Subject to Completion, dated May 10, 2007.

Prospectus Supplement

(To Prospectus dated May 10, 2007)

$            

Oracle Corporation

$            Floating Rate Notes due              2009

$            Floating Rate Notes due              2010

Interest payable                     ,                    ,                      and                     

Oracle Corporation is offering $            aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due              2009 (the �2009 Notes�) and
$            aggregate principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due              2010 (the �2010 Notes� and, together with the 2009 Notes,
the �Notes�).

The 2009 Notes will bear interest at a floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus     % per year and the 2010 Notes will
bear interest at a floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus     % per year. Interest will be payable quarterly on             ,
            ,              and             , commencing             , 2007. The 2009 Notes will mature on             , 2009 and the 2010 Notes will
mature on             , 2010.

Investing in the notes involves risks. See � Risk factors� beginning on page S-9.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these Notes
or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the
contrary is a criminal offense.

Public offering price Underwriting discount
Proceeds, before

expenses, to Oracle
2009 Notes % % %
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Total $ $ $
2010 Notes % % %
Total $ $ $
Interest on the notes will accrue from                     , 2007 to the date of delivery.

The Notes will not be listed on any securities exchange. Currently there is no public market for the Notes.

The underwriter expects to deliver the notes to purchasers on or about                     , 2007.

Sole Book-Running Manager

JPMorgan
                    , 2007
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You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the
accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different
information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not
assume that the information contained in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is accurate as of
any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus supplement.
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Special note on forward-looking statements
This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and documents that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement include forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may be preceded by, followed by or include the words
�believes,� �expects,� �anticipates,� �intends,� �plans,� �estimates� or similar expressions. Oracle claims the protection of the safe harbor for
forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 for all forward-looking statements. We
have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events. These
forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions about our business. Factors that might cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in �Risk factors� beginning on page S-9 of this
prospectus supplement. You should understand that the following important factors, in addition to those discussed in the
incorporated documents, could affect our future results, and could cause those results or other outcomes to differ materially from
those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements:

� Economic, political and market conditions could adversely affect our revenue growth and profitability through reductions in IT
budgets and expenditures.

� We may fail to achieve our financial forecasts due to such factors as delays or size reductions in transactions, fewer large
transactions in a particular quarter, unanticipated fluctuations in currency exchange rates, delays in delivery of new products or
releases or a decline in our renewal rates for software license updates and product support.

� We cannot assure market acceptance of new products or new versions of existing products.

� We have an active acquisition program and our acquisitions may not be successful, may involve unanticipated costs or other
integration issues or may disrupt our existing operations.

� Periodic changes to our pricing model and sales organization could temporarily disrupt operations and cause a decline or delay
in sales.

� Intense competitive forces demand rapid technological advances and frequent new product introductions, and could require us
to reduce prices.

We have no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or risks. New information, future events or risks may cause the forward-looking events we discuss in this prospectus
supplement, the accompanying prospectus or the documents incorporated herein by reference not to occur.

S-1
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About this prospectus supplement
This document is in two parts. The first is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The
second part, the accompanying prospectus, gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering.

If the description of this offering varies between this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on
the information in this prospectus supplement.

Unless we have indicated otherwise, references in this prospectus supplement to �Oracle�, �we,� �us� and �our� or similar terms
are to Oracle Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.

S-2
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Summary

Oracle Corporation

We are the world�s largest enterprise software company. We develop, manufacture, market, distribute and service database and
middleware software as well as applications software designed to help our customers manage and grow their business operations.

Our goal is to offer customers scalable, reliable, secure and integrated database, middleware and applications software that
provides transactional efficiencies, adapts to an organization�s unique needs and allows better ways to access and manage
information at a low total cost of ownership. We seek to be an industry leader in each of the specific product categories in which we
compete and to expand into new and emerging markets. We have focused on strengthening our market position and enhancing our
existing portfolio of products and services as well as acquiring and integrating businesses that we believe will improve our
competitive position, expand our customer base, provide greater scale to increase our research and development and accelerate
innovation.

Oracle Corporation was incorporated in 2005 as a Delaware corporation and is the successor to operations originally begun in June
1977.

Our principal executive offices are located at 500 Oracle Parkway, Redwood City, California 94065, and our telephone number is
(650) 506-7000. We maintain a website at www.oracle.com where general information about us is available. We are not
incorporating the contents of the website into this prospectus supplement.

S-3
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The offering

The summary below describes the principal terms of the Notes. Certain of the terms and conditions described below are subject to
important limitations and exceptions. The �Description of notes� section of this prospectus supplement contains a more detailed
description of the terms and conditions of the Notes.

Issuer Oracle Corporation.

Securities offered $             principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due              2009.
$             principal amount of Floating Rate Notes due              2010.

Maturity date             , 2009 for the 2009 Notes.
            , 2010 for the 2010 Notes.

Interest rates Floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus     % for the 2009 Notes.
Floating rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR plus     % for the 2010 Notes.

Interest payment dates Each             ,             ,             and             , beginning on             , 2007.

Ranking The Notes will be the senior unsecured obligations of Oracle Corporation and will rank equally with
all of its existing and future senior indebtedness. All existing and future liabilities of subsidiaries of
Oracle Corporation will be effectively senior to the Notes.

As of February 28, 2007, Oracle had approximately $13.6 billion of total liabilities on a
consolidated basis, including $5.7 billion of senior notes and $5 million of capital leases
outstanding. Of this amount, subsidiaries of Oracle Corporation had approximately $6.8 billion of
liabilities (including trade payables) to which the Notes will be effectively subordinated. In addition,
in April 2007, Oracle Corporation issued $1.7 billion of short-term promissory notes (the
�Commercial Paper Notes�) under its commercial paper program, which rank pari passu with the
Existing Floating Rate Notes and will rank pari passu with the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes.

Governing law New York.

Use of proceeds The proceeds of this offering will be used to fund the redemption of the existing floating rate notes
due 2009 (the �Existing Floating Rate Notes�). To the extent proceeds from the offering exceed the
amount needed to fund such redemption, we intend to use such excess amount for general
corporate purposes, which may include stock repurchases repayment of other indebtedness (such
as our Commercial Paper Notes) and future acquisitions.
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Further issuances Oracle Corporation may create and issue further notes of a series ranking equally and ratably with
the applicable series of Notes offered by this prospectus supplement in all respects, so that such
further notes of each series will be consolidated and form a single series with the applicable series
of Notes offered by this prospectus supplement.

Sinking fund None.

Optional redemption Oracle Corporation may not redeem the Notes prior to their maturity.

Trustee and calculation agent The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. is the trustee and calculation agent.

Rating Moody�s Investors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services and Fitch Ratings currently
rate Oracle Corporation�s long-term debt A2, A and A, respectively.

Risk factors You should carefully consider all of the information in this prospectus supplement and the
accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein by reference. In particular, you
should evaluate the information set forth under �Special note on forward-looking statements� and
�Risk factors� before deciding whether to invest in the Notes.

S-5
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Summary consolidated financial data

Our summary consolidated financial information presented below as of and for the three years ended May 31, 2006 has been
derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The summary consolidated financial information as of and for the nine
months ended February 28, 2007 and February 28, 2006 has been derived from our unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and includes all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring items) which are, in our opinion, necessary for a fair
presentation of our financial position as of such dates and results of operations for such periods. The results of operations for the
nine months ended February 28, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the results for our full fiscal year ending May 31, 2007.

Our summary consolidated financial information set forth below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements, including the notes thereto, and �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,� both of which can be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2006 and our Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarterly periods ended August 31, 2006, November 30, 2006 and February 28, 2007, all of which
are incorporated by reference herein.

Nine months
ended February 28,

Year ended

May 31,
(In millions, except per share data) 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(Unaudited)
Results of operations(1):

Revenues:
New software licenses $ 3,401 $ 2,783 $ 4,905 $ 4,091 $ 3,541
Software license updates and product support 6,056 4,764 6,636 5,330 4,529
Services 2,710 1,982 2,839 2,378 2,086

Total revenues 12,167 9,529 14,380 11,799 10,156

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 2,632 2,076 3,177 2,511 2,123
Software license updates and product support 613 514 719 618 547
Cost of services 2,419 1,757 2,516 2,033 1,770
Research and development 1,596 1,335 1,872 1,491 1,254
General and administrative 503 410 555 550 508
Amortization of intangible assets 623 398 583 219 36
Other 88 160 222 355 54

Total operating expenses 8,474 6,650 9,644 7,777 6,292

Operating income 3,693 2,879 4,736 4,022 3,864
Interest expense (248) (86) (169) (135) (21)
Non-operating income, net 277 138 243 164 102

Income before provision for income taxes 3,722 2,931 4,810 4,051 3,945
Provision for income taxes 1,052 850 1,429 1,165 1,264

Net income $ 2,670 $ 2,081 $ 3,381 $ 2,886 $ 2,681

Earnings per share�basic $ 0.51 $ 0.40 $ 0.65 $ 0.56 $ 0.51

Earnings per share�diluted $ 0.51 $ 0.40 $ 0.64 $ 0.55 $ 0.50
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February 28, May 31,
(In millions) 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(Unaudited)

Balance sheets data(1):
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities $ 6,445 $ 7,764 $ 7,605 $ 4,771 $ 8,587
Working capital 4,334 5,333 5,044 385 7,064
Total assets 29,369 28,464 29,029 20,687 12,763
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt 3 341 159 2,693 9
Notes payable and long-term debt, net of current portion 5,736 5,741 5,735 159 163
Total stockholders� equity 15,791 15,043 15,012 10,837 7,995

(1) Excludes the impact of the following significant events subsequent to February 28, 2007: (a) our acquisition of Hyperion Solutions Corporation
in April 2007 (substantially all of the consideration for which was paid in cash), (b) our issuance of $1.7 billion in Commercial Paper Notes in
April 2007 and (c) our redemption of the Existing Floating Rate Notes to be effected on May 30, 2007.

S-7
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Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

The following table sets forth our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for each of the periods indicated. This table does not reflect the
$1.7 billion of Commercial Paper Notes we issued in April 2007 or the redemption of the Existing Floating Rate Notes to be effected
on May 30, 2007.

Nine months ended
February 28,

Year ended

May 31,
        2007         2006 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 15x 28x 25x 25x 68x 64x 48x
For purposes of calculating this ratio, the term �earnings� means the amounts resulting from the following: (a) our income before
provision for income taxes, plus (b) the minority interests in the income before provision for income taxes of our majority owned
subsidiaries, plus (c) our fixed charges, less (d) our share of our equity investee�s income before provision for income taxes, less
(e) our interest capitalized. The term �fixed charges� means the amounts resulting from the following: (a) our interest expensed, plus
(b) our interest capitalized, plus (c) our estimate of the interest component of rent expense.

S-8
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Risk factors
In considering whether to purchase the Notes, you should carefully consider all the information we have included or incorporated by
reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. In particular, you should carefully consider the risk
factors described below.

Risks Related to the Offering

An active trading market for the Notes may not develop.

There is currently no public market for the Notes, and Oracle Corporation does not currently plan to list the Notes on any national
securities exchange. In addition, the liquidity of any trading market in the Notes, and the market price quoted for the Notes, may be
adversely affected by changes in the overall market for these Notes, prevailing interest rates and changes in Oracle Corporation�s
consolidated financial condition, results of operations or prospects. A liquid trading market in the Notes may not develop, which
could decrease the amounts you would otherwise receive upon a sale or disposition of the Notes.

The Notes are the unsecured obligations of Oracle Corporation and not obligations of its subsidiaries and will be
effectively subordinated to the claims of its subsidiaries� creditors. Structural subordination increases the risk that Oracle
Corporation will be unable to meet its obligations on the Notes when they mature.

The Notes are exclusively the obligations of Oracle Corporation and are not obligations of its subsidiaries. Oracle Corporation is a
holding company and substantially all of its operations are conducted through its subsidiaries. As a result, Oracle Corporation�s
cash flow and ability to service its debt, including the Notes, depend upon the earnings of its subsidiaries and the distribution to it of
earnings, loans or other payments by its subsidiaries.

Oracle Corporation�s subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities. Its subsidiaries have not guaranteed the Notes and are
under no obligation to pay any amounts due on the Notes or to provide Oracle Corporation with funds for its payment obligations,
whether by dividends, distributions, loans or other payments. Payments to Oracle Corporation by its subsidiaries will also be
contingent upon such subsidiaries� earnings and business considerations and may be subject to legal and contractual restrictions.
As of February 28, 2007, Oracle had approximately $13.6 billion of total liabilities on a consolidated basis, including $5.7 billion of
senior notes and $5 million of capital leases outstanding. Of this amount, subsidiaries of Oracle Corporation had approximately
$6.8 billion of liabilities (including trade payables). The Existing Floating Rate Notes are, and the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes will
be, effectively subordinated to all such indebtedness of these subsidiaries. In addition, in April 2007, Oracle Corporation issued
$1.7 billion of Commercial Paper Notes, which rank pari passu with the Existing Floating Rate Notes and will rank pari passu with
the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes.

Oracle Corporation�s right to receive any assets of any of its subsidiaries upon their liquidation or reorganization, and therefore the
right of the holders of the Notes to participate in those assets, will be effectively subordinated to the claims of that subsidiary�s
creditors, including senior and subordinated debt holders and bank and trade creditors. In addition, even if Oracle Corporation were
a creditor of any of its subsidiaries, its rights as a creditor would be subordinate to any
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security interest in the assets of its subsidiaries and any indebtedness of its subsidiaries senior to that held by Oracle Corporation.

In addition, the Notes are not secured by any of the assets of Oracle Corporation or any assets of its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the
Notes will be subordinated to the extent Oracle Corporation or its subsidiaries have secured borrowings. There are no restrictions
in the indenture governing the Notes that restrict its subsidiaries from granting security interests or liens on any or all of their
assets.

The indenture governing the Notes contains negative covenants. The limitation on liens and sale/leaseback covenants do
not apply to Oracle Corporation�s subsidiaries and contain exceptions that would allow Oracle Corporation and its
subsidiaries to grant liens or security interests with respect to their assets rendering the holders of the Notes structurally
or contractually subordinated to new lenders.

The indenture governing the Notes contains negative covenants. The limitation on liens and sale/leaseback covenants apply to
Oracle Corporation, but not to its subsidiaries. As a result, such subsidiaries will not be restricted under the indenture from granting
liens or security interests with respect to all or any of their assets without having to provide similar liens or security to the holders of
the Notes, or from entering into sale/leaseback transactions. Exceptions to the definition of �permitted lien� within the limitation on
liens covenant would allow Oracle Corporation to borrow substantial additional amounts, and to grant liens or security interests in
connection with those borrowings.

Increased leverage may harm the financial condition and results of operations of Oracle Corporation.

As of February 28, 2007 Oracle had approximately $13.6 billion of total liabilities on a consolidated basis. In addition, in April 2007,
Oracle Corporation issued $1.7 billion of Commercial Paper Notes. As of the date hereof, Oracle Corporation has the ability to
borrow up to an additional $1.3 billion under its commercial paper program and $3.0 billion under its revolving credit facility, which
backstops the commercial paper program.

Oracle Corporation and its subsidiaries may incur additional indebtedness in the future and the Notes do not restrict future
incurrence of indebtedness. Any increase in its level of indebtedness will have several important effects on Oracle Corporation�s
future operations, including, without limitation:

� Oracle Corporation will have additional cash requirements in order to support the payment of interest on its outstanding
indebtedness;

� increases in its outstanding indebtedness and leverage will increase its vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic
and industry conditions, as well as to competitive pressure; and

� depending on the levels of its outstanding debt, its ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures,
general corporate and other purposes may be limited.

Oracle Corporation�s ability to make payments of principal and interest on its indebtedness depends upon its future performance,
which will be subject to general economic conditions, industry cycles and financial, business and other factors affecting its
consolidated operations,
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many of which are beyond its control. If Oracle Corporation is unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future
to service its debt, it may be required, among other things:

� to seek additional financing in the debt or equity markets;
� to refinance or restructure all or a portion of its indebtedness, including the Notes;
� to sell selected assets;
� to reduce or delay planned capital expenditures; or
� to reduce or delay planned operating expenditures.
Such measures might not be sufficient to enable Oracle Corporation to service its debt. In addition, any such financing, refinancing
or sale of assets might not be available on economically favorable terms.

Ratings of the Notes may change and affect the market price and marketability of the Notes.

Oracle Corporation�s long term debt has been rated A2, A and A by Moody�s Investors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor�s Ratings
Services and Fitch Ratings, respectively. Such ratings are limited in scope, and do not address all material risks relating to an
investment in the Notes, but rather reflect only the view of each rating agency at the time the rating is issued. An explanation of the
significance of such rating may be obtained from such rating agency. There is no assurance that such credit ratings will remain in
effect for any given period of time or that such ratings will not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies,
if, in each rating agency�s judgment, circumstances so warrant. It is also possible that such ratings may be lowered in connection
with future events, such as future acquisitions. Holders of Notes will have no recourse against Oracle Corporation or any other
parties in the event of a change in or suspension or withdrawal of such ratings. Any lowering, suspension or withdrawal of such
ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price or marketability of the Notes.

Risks Related to Our Business

We operate in a rapidly changing economic and technological environment that presents numerous risks, many of which are driven
by factors that we cannot control or predict. The following discussion and our �Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates� discussed
in our 10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2007, which is incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, highlight
some of these risks.

Economic, political and market conditions can adversely affect our revenue growth and profitability.

Our business is influenced by a range of factors that are beyond our control and that we have no comparative advantage in
forecasting. These include:

� general economic and business conditions;
� the overall demand for enterprise software and services;
� governmental budgetary constraints or shifts in government spending priorities; and
� general political developments.
A general weakening of the global economy, or a curtailment in government or corporate spending, could delay and decrease
customer purchases. In addition, the war on terrorism, the war in Iraq and the potential for other hostilities in various parts of the
world, potential public
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health crises, as well as natural disasters, continue to contribute to a climate of economic and political uncertainty that could
adversely affect our revenue growth and results of operations. These factors generally have the strongest effect on our sales of
software licenses, and to a lesser extent, also affect our renewal rates for software license updates and product support.

We may fail to achieve our financial forecasts due to inaccurate sales forecasts or other factors.

Our revenues, and particularly our new software license revenues, are difficult to forecast, and as a result our quarterly operating
results can fluctuate substantially. We use a �pipeline� system, a common industry practice, to forecast sales and trends in our
business. Our sales personnel monitor the status of all proposals and estimate when a customer will make a purchase decision and
the dollar amount of the sale. These estimates are aggregated periodically to generate a sales pipeline. Our pipeline estimates can
prove to be unreliable both in a particular quarter and over a longer period of time, in part because the �conversion rate� of the
pipeline into contracts can be very difficult to estimate. A contraction in the conversion rate, or in the pipeline itself, could cause us
to plan or budget incorrectly and adversely affect our business or results of operations. In particular, a slowdown in information
technology spending or economic conditions generally can reduce the conversion rate in particular periods as purchasing decisions
are delayed, reduced in amount or cancelled. The conversion rate can also be affected by the tendency of some of our customers
to wait until the end of a fiscal period in the hope of obtaining more favorable terms. In addition, for newly acquired companies, we
will have limited ability to predict how their pipelines will convert into sales or revenues for one or two quarters following the
acquisition and their conversion rate post-acquisition may be quite different from their historical conversion rate. Because a
substantial portion of our new software license revenue contracts is completed in the latter part of a quarter, and our cost structure
is largely fixed in the short term, revenue shortfalls tend to have a disproportionately negative impact on our profitability. A delay in
even a small number of large new software license transactions could cause our quarterly new software licenses revenues to fall
significantly short of our predictions.

Our success depends upon our ability to develop new products and services, integrate acquired products and services
and enhance our existing products and services.

Rapid technological advances and evolving standards in computer hardware, software development and communications
infrastructure, changing and increasingly sophisticated customer needs and frequent new product introductions and enhancements
characterize the enterprise software market in which we compete. If we are unable to develop new products and services, or to
enhance and improve our products and support services in a timely manner or to position and/or price our products and services to
meet market demand, customers may not buy new software licenses or renew software license updates and product support. In
addition, information technology standards from both consortia and formal standards-setting forums as well as de facto
marketplace standards are rapidly evolving. We cannot provide any assurance that the standards on which we choose to develop
new products will allow us to compete effectively for business opportunities in emerging areas.

We are developing a next generation applications platform that is planned to combine the best features, flows and usability traits of
the Oracle, PeopleSoft, JD Edwards and Siebel applications. We have also acquired several other application product lines for
which we will need to continue to provide long-term support, as well as ensure that the key capabilities of these product lines move
into the next generation platform. We intend to continue many of these application lines
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as separate product lines as well, which requires us to continue to dedicate development resources. If we do not develop and
release these new or enhanced products and services within the anticipated time frames, if there is a delay in market acceptance of
a new, enhanced or acquired product line or service, if we do not timely optimize complementary product lines and services or if we
fail to adequately integrate, support or enhance acquired application lines or services, our business may be adversely affected.

Acquisitions present many risks, and we may not realize the financial and strategic goals that were contemplated at the
time of any transaction.

In the past three fiscal years, we have invested over $25 billion in the aggregate to acquire companies, products, services and
technologies. An active acquisition program is an important element of our overall corporate strategy and we expect to continue to
make similar acquisitions in the future. Risks we may face in connection with our acquisition program include:

� an acquisition may not further our business strategy as we expected, or we may pay more than the acquired company or assets
are worth;

� we may not realize the anticipated increase in our revenues if a larger than predicted number of customers decline to
renew software license updates and product support, if we are unable to sell the acquired products to our customer base
or if contract models of an acquired company do not allow us to recognize revenues on a timely basis;

� we may have difficulty incorporating acquired technologies or products with our existing product lines and maintaining
uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies;

� we may have higher than anticipated costs in continuing support and development of acquired products;

� we may have multiple and overlapping product lines that are offered, priced and supported differently, which could cause
customer confusion and delays;

� our relationship with current and new employees, customers, partners and distributors could be impaired;

� we may have to delay or not proceed with a substantial acquisition if we cannot obtain the necessary funding to complete the
acquisition in a timely manner;

� our use of cash to pay for acquisitions may limit other potential uses of our cash;

� we may significantly increase our interest expense, leverage and debt service requirements if we incur additional debt to pay for
an acquisition;

� we may assume pre-existing contractual relationships, which we would not have otherwise entered into, and exiting or modifying
such relationships may be costly to us and disruptive to customers;

�
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our due diligence process may fail to identify all of the problems, liabilities or other challenges of an acquired company or
technology, including issues with the company�s intellectual property, product quality or product architecture or employee,
customer or partner issues;

� we may have legal and tax exposures or lose anticipated tax benefits as a result of unforeseen difficulties in our legal entity
merger integration activities;
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� we may face contingencies related to product liability, intellectual property, financial disclosures, accounting practices or internal
controls and other contingencies;

� the acquisition may result in litigation from terminated employees or third parties;

� our ongoing business may be disrupted and our management�s attention may be diverted by acquisition, transition or integration
activities;

� we may be unable to obtain timely approvals from governmental authorities under competition and antitrust laws and from
worker councils under applicable employment laws; and

� to the extent that we issue a significant amount of equity securities in connection with future acquisitions, existing stockholders
may be diluted and earnings per share may decrease.

The occurrence of any of these risks could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition
or cash flows, particularly in the case of a larger acquisition or several concurrent acquisitions.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property.

We rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and contractual commitments to protect our
proprietary information. Despite our efforts, these measures can only provide limited protection. Unauthorized third parties may try
to copy or reverse engineer portions of our products or otherwise obtain and use our intellectual property. Any patents owned by us
may be invalidated, circumvented or challenged. Any of our pending or future patent applications, whether or not being currently
challenged, may not be issued with the scope of the claims we seek, if at all. In addition, the laws of some countries do not provide
the same level of protection of our proprietary rights as do the laws of the United States. If we cannot protect our proprietary
technology against unauthorized copying or use, we may not remain competitive.

Third parties may claim we infringe their intellectual property rights.

We periodically receive notices from others claiming we are infringing their intellectual property rights. We expect the number of
such claims will increase as the number of products and competitors in our industry segments grows, the functionality of products
overlap, the proliferation, incorporation and support of third-party code (including open source code) increases, and the volume of
issued software patents continues to increase. Responding to any infringement claim, regardless of its validity, could:

� be time-consuming, costly and/or result in litigation;

� divert management�s time and attention from developing our business;

� require us to pay monetary damages or enter into royalty and licensing agreements that we would not normally find acceptable;

� require us to stop selling or to redesign certain of our products; or

� require us to satisfy indemnification obligations to our customers.
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patent infringement case is discussed under Note 16 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended February 28, 2007.

We may need to change our pricing models to compete successfully.

The intensely competitive markets in which we compete can put pressure on us to reduce our prices. If our competitors offer deep
discounts on certain products or services, we may need to lower prices or offer other favorable terms in order to compete
successfully. Any such changes would likely reduce margins and could adversely affect operating results. Our software license
updates and product support fees are generally priced as a percentage of our new license fees. Our competitors may offer a lower
percentage pricing on product updates and support, which could put pressure on us to further discount our new license prices. Any
broad-based change to our prices and pricing policies could cause new software license and services revenues to decline or be
delayed as our sales force implements and our customers adjust to the new pricing policies. Some of our competitors may bundle
software products for promotional purposes or as a long-term pricing strategy or provide guarantees of prices and product
implementations. These practices could, over time, significantly constrain the prices that we can charge for our products. If we do
not adapt our pricing models to reflect changes in customer use of our products, our new software license revenues could
decrease. Additionally, increased distribution of applications through application service providers may reduce the average price for
our products or adversely affect other sales of our products, reducing new software license revenues unless we can offset price
reductions with volume increases or lower spending. The increase in open source software distribution may also cause us to
change our pricing models.

We may be unable to compete effectively in a range of markets within the highly competitive software industry.

Many vendors develop and market databases, internet application server products, application development tools, business
applications, collaboration products and business intelligence products that compete with our offerings. In addition, several
companies offer business outsourcing as a competitive alternative to buying software. Some of these competitors have greater
financial or technical resources than we do. Also, our competitors who offer business applications and application server products
may influence a customer�s purchasing decision for the underlying database in an effort to persuade potential customers not to
acquire our products. We could lose market share if our competitors introduce new competitive products, add new functionality,
acquire competitive products, reduce prices or form strategic alliances with other companies. We may also face increasing
competition from open source software initiatives, in which competitors may provide software and intellectual property free. Existing
or new competitors could gain market share in any of our markets at our expense.

Our periodic sales force restructurings can be disruptive.

We continue to rely heavily on our direct sales force. We have in the past restructured or made other adjustments to our sales force
in response to management changes, product changes, performance issues, acquisitions and other internal and external
considerations. In the past, sales force restructurings have generally resulted in a temporary lack of focus and reduced productivity;
these effects could recur in connection with future acquisitions and other restructurings and our revenues could be negatively
affected.

S-15

Edgar Filing: ORACLE CORP - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 22



Table of Contents

Disruptions of our indirect sales channel could affect our future operating results.

Our indirect channel network is comprised primarily of resellers, system integrators/implementers, consultants, education providers,
internet service providers, network integrators and independent software vendors. Our relationships with these channel participants
are important elements of our marketing and sales efforts. Our financial results could be adversely affected if our contracts with
channel participants were terminated, if our relationships with channel participants were to deteriorate, if any of our competitors
enter into strategic relationships with or acquire a significant channel participant or if the financial condition of our channel
participants were to weaken. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in maintaining, expanding or developing our
relationships with channel participants. If we are not successful, we may lose sales opportunities, customers and market share.

PeopleSoft�s Customer Assurance Program may expose us to substantial liabilities if triggered.

In June 2003, in response to our tender offer, PeopleSoft implemented what it referred to as the �customer assurance program� or
�CAP�. The CAP incorporated a provision in PeopleSoft�s standard licensing arrangement that purports to contractually burden
Oracle, as a result of its acquisition of PeopleSoft, with a contingent obligation to make payments to PeopleSoft customers should
Oracle fail to take certain business actions for a fixed period of time subsequent to the acquisition. The payment obligation, which
typically expires four years from the date of the contract, is fixed at an amount generally between two and five times the license and
first year support fees paid to PeopleSoft in the applicable license transaction. This purported obligation was not reflected as a
liability on PeopleSoft�s balance sheet as PeopleSoft concluded that it could be triggered only following the consummation of an
acquisition. PeopleSoft used six different standard versions of the CAP over the 18-month period commencing June 2003.
PeopleSoft ceased using the CAP on December 29, 2004, the date on which we acquired a controlling interest in PeopleSoft. We
have concluded that, as of the date of the PeopleSoft acquisition, the penalty provisions under the CAP represented a contingent
liability of Oracle. The aggregate potential CAP obligation as of February 28, 2007 was $3.2 billion. Unless the CAP provisions are
removed from these licensing arrangements, we do not expect the aggregate potential CAP obligation to decline substantially until
fiscal year 2008 when a significant number of these provisions begin to expire. The last CAP obligation will expire on December 31,
2008. We have not recorded a liability related to the CAP, as we do not believe it is probable that our post-acquisition activities
related to the PeopleSoft product line will trigger an obligation to make any payment pursuant to the CAP.

In addition, while no assurance can be given as to the ultimate outcome of litigation, we believe we would also have substantial
defenses with respect to the legality and enforceability of the CAP contract provisions in response to any claims seeking payment
from Oracle under the CAP terms. While we have taken extensive steps to assure customers that we intend to continue developing
and supporting the PeopleSoft and JD Edwards product lines and as of the date hereof we have not received any claims for CAP
payments, PeopleSoft customers may assert claims for CAP payments in the future.

Charges to earnings resulting from past acquisitions may adversely affect our operating results.

Under purchase accounting, we allocate the total purchase price to an acquired company�s net tangible assets, amortizable
intangible assets and in-process research and development based on their fair values as of the date of the acquisition and record
the excess of the purchase price over
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those fair values as goodwill. Management�s estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable but
which are inherently uncertain. Going forward, the following factors could result in material charges that would adversely affect our
results:

� impairment of goodwill or intangible assets;

� accrual of newly identified pre-merger contingent liabilities that are identified subsequent to the finalization of the purchase price
allocation; and

� charges to income to eliminate certain Oracle pre-merger activities that duplicate those of the acquired company or to reduce our
cost structure.

Charges to earnings associated with acquisitions include amortization of intangible assets, in-process research and development
as well as other acquisition related charges, restructuring and stock-based compensation associated with assumed stock awards.
Charges to earnings in any given period could differ substantially from other periods based on the timing and size of our future
acquisitions and the extent of integration activities. See Item 2, �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations�Supplemental Disclosure Related to Acquisition Accounting� in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended February 28, 2007 for additional information about charges to earnings associated with our recent
acquisitions.

We expect to continue to incur additional costs associated with combining the operations of our previously acquired companies,
which may be substantial. Additional costs may include costs of employee redeployment, relocation and retention, including salary
increases or bonuses, accelerated amortization of deferred equity compensation and severance payments, reorganization or
closure of facilities, taxes and termination of contracts that provide redundant or conflicting services. Some of these costs may have
to be accounted for as expenses that would decrease our net income and earnings per share for the periods in which those
adjustments are made.

Our international sales and operations subject us to additional risks that can adversely affect our operating results.

We derive a substantial portion of our revenues, and have significant operations, outside of the United States. Our international
operations include software development, sales, customer support and shared administrative service centers. We are subject to a
variety of risks, including those related to general economic conditions in each country or region, regulatory changes, political
unrest, terrorism and the potential for other hostilities and public health risks, particularly in areas in which we have significant
operations. We face challenges in managing an organization operating in various countries, which can entail longer payment cycles
and difficulties in collecting accounts receivable, overlapping tax regimes, fluctuations in currency exchange rates, difficulties in
transferring funds from certain countries and reduced protection for intellectual property rights in some countries. We must comply
with a variety of international laws and regulations, including trade restrictions, local labor ordinances, changes in tariff rates and
import and export licensing requirements. Our success depends, in part, on our ability to anticipate these risks and manage these
difficulties.

We are a majority shareholder of i-flex solutions limited, a publicly traded Indian software company focused on the banking
industry. As the majority shareholder of an international entity, we are faced with several additional risks, including being subject to
local securities regulations
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and being unable to exert full control or obtain financial and other information on a timely basis.

We may experience foreign currency gains and losses.

We conduct a portion of our business in currencies other than the United States dollar. Our revenues and operating results are
adversely affected when the dollar strengthens relative to other currencies and are positively affected when the dollar weakens.
Changes in the value of major foreign currencies, particularly the Euro, Japanese Yen and British Pound relative to the United
States dollar can significantly affect revenues and our operating results.

Our foreign currency transaction gains and losses, primarily related to sublicense fees and other agreements among us and our
subsidiaries and distributors, are charged against earnings in the period incurred. We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts
to hedge certain transaction and translation exposures in major currencies, but we will continue to experience foreign currency
gains and losses in certain instances where it is not possible or cost effective to hedge foreign currencies.

Oracle On Demand may not be successful.

We offer Oracle On Demand outsourcing services for our applications and database technology, delivered either at Oracle or at a
customer designated location. Oracle On Demand also includes several product lines we have acquired. Our Oracle On Demand
business model continues to evolve and we may not be able to compete effectively, generate significant revenues or develop
Oracle On Demand into a profitable business. We incur expenses associated with the infrastructure and marketing of our Oracle
On Demand business in advance of our ability to recognize the revenues associated with our subscription based contracts. This
business is subject to a variety of risks including:

� demand for these services may not meet our expectations;

� we may not be able to operate this business at an acceptable profit level;

� we manage critical customer applications, data and other confidential information through Oracle On Demand and thus would
face increased exposure to significant damage claims and risk to future business prospects in the event of system failures or
inadequate disaster recovery or misappropriation of customer confidential information;

� we may face regulatory exposure in certain areas such as data privacy, data security and export compliance, as well as
workforce reduction claims as a result of customers transferring their information technology functions to us;

� the laws and regulations applicable to hosted service providers are unsettled, particularly in the areas of privacy and security and
use of offshore resources; changes in these laws could affect our ability to provide services from or to some locations and could
increase both the cost and risk associated with providing the services;

� demand for these services may be affected by customer and media concerns about security risks and/or use of outsourced
services providers more generally; and

� our Oracle On Demand offerings may require large fixed costs such as for data centers, computers, network infrastructure and
security.
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We may be unable to hire enough qualified employees or we may lose key employees.

We rely on the continued service of our senior management, including our Chief Executive Officer, members of our executive team
and other key employees and the hiring of new qualified employees. In the software industry, there is substantial and continuous
competition for highly skilled business, product development, technical and other personnel. In addition, acquisitions could cause
us to lose key personnel of the acquired companies or at Oracle. We may experience increased compensation costs that are not
offset by either improved productivity or higher prices. We may not be successful in recruiting new personnel and in retaining and
motivating existing personnel. With rare exceptions, we do not have long-term employment or non-competition agreements with our
employees. Members of our senior management team have left Oracle over the years for a variety of reasons, and we cannot
assure you that there will not be additional departures, which may be disruptive to our operations.

Part of our total compensation program includes stock options. Stock options are an important tool in attracting and retaining
employees in our industry. If our stock price performs poorly it may adversely affect our ability to retain or attract employees. In
addition, because we now expense all stock based compensation, we may in the future change our stock-based and other
compensation practices. Some of the changes we are considering include the reduction in the number of employees granted
options, a reduction in the number of options granted and a change to alternative forms of stock-based compensation. Any
changes in our compensation practices or changes made by competitors could affect our ability to retain and motivate existing
personnel and recruit new personnel.

We might experience significant errors or security flaws in our products and services.

Despite testing prior to their release, software products frequently contain errors or security flaws, especially when first introduced
or when new versions are released. The detection and correction of any security flaws can be time consuming and costly. Errors in
our software products could affect the ability of our products to work with other hardware or software products, could delay the
development or release of new products or new versions of products and could adversely affect market acceptance of our
products. If we experience errors or delays in releasing new products or new versions of products, we could lose revenues. In
addition, we run our own business operations, Oracle On Demand, and other outsourcing, support and consulting services, on our
products and networks and any security flaws, if exploited, could affect our ability to conduct business operations. End users, who
rely on our products and services for applications that are critical to their businesses, may have a greater sensitivity to product
errors and security vulnerabilities than customers for software products generally. Software product errors and security flaws in our
products or services could expose us to product liability, performance and/or warranty claims as well as harm our reputation, which
could impact our future sales of products and services. In addition, we may be legally required to publicly report security breaches
of our services, which could significantly impact future business prospects for those services.

We may not receive significant revenues from our current research and development efforts for several years, if at all.

Developing and localizing software is expensive and the investment in product development often involves a long payback cycle.
We have and expect to continue making significant
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investments in software research and development and related product opportunities. Accelerated product introductions and short
product life cycles require high levels of expenditures for research and development that could adversely affect our operating
results if not offset by revenue increases. We believe that we must continue to dedicate a significant amount of resources to our
research and development efforts to maintain our competitive position. However, we do not expect to receive significant revenues
from these investments for several years if at all.

Our sales to government clients subject us to risks including early termination, audits, investigations, sanctions and
penalties.

We derive revenues from contracts with the United States government, state and local governments and their respective agencies,
who may terminate most of these contracts at any time, without cause.

There is increased pressure for governments and their agencies, both domestically and internationally, to reduce spending. Our
federal government contracts are subject to the approval of appropriations being made by the United States Congress to fund the
expenditures under these contracts. Similarly, our contracts at the state and local levels are subject to government funding
authorizations.

Additionally, government contracts are generally subject to audits and investigations which could result in various civil and criminal
penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, refund of a portion of fees received, forfeiture of profits,
suspension of payments, fines and suspensions or debarment from future government business.

Business disruptions could affect our operating results.

A significant portion of our research and development activities and certain other critical business operations is concentrated in a
few geographic areas. We are a highly automated business and a disruption or failure of our systems could cause delays in
completing sales and providing services, including some of our On Demand offerings. A major earthquake, fire or other
catastrophic event that results in the destruction or disruption of any of our critical business or information technology systems
could severely affect our ability to conduct normal business operations and as a result our future operating results could be
materially and adversely affected.

We may have exposure to additional tax liabilities.

As a multinational corporation, we are subject to income taxes as well as non-income based taxes, in both the United States and
various foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxes and other tax
liabilities.

In the ordinary course of a global business, there are many intercompany transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. We are regularly under audit by tax authorities. Our intercompany transfer pricing is currently being
reviewed by the IRS and by foreign tax jurisdictions and will likely be subject to additional audits in the future. We previously
negotiated three unilateral Advance Pricing Agreements with the IRS that cover many of our intercompany transfer pricing issues
and preclude the IRS from making a transfer pricing adjustment within the scope of these agreements. However, these
agreements, which are
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effective for fiscal years through May 31, 2006, do not cover all elements of our transfer pricing and do not bind tax authorities
outside the United States. We have finalized one bilateral Advance Pricing Agreement and currently are negotiating an additional
bilateral agreement to cover the period from June 1, 2001 through May 31, 2008. There can be no guarantee that such negotiations
will result in an agreement.

Although we believe that our tax estimates are reasonable, we cannot assure you that the final determination of tax audits or tax
disputes will not be different from what is reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals.

We are also subject to non-income taxes, such as payroll, sales, use, value-added, net worth, property and goods and services
taxes, in both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions. We are regularly under audit by tax authorities with respect to
these non-income taxes and may have exposure to additional non-income tax liabilities. Our acquisition activities have increased
our non-income tax exposures.

Adverse litigation results could affect our business.

We are subject to various legal proceedings. Litigation can be lengthy, expensive, disruptive to our operations and results cannot
be predicted with certainty. An adverse decision could result in monetary damages or injunctive relief that could affect our business,
operating results or financial condition. Additional information regarding certain of the lawsuits we are involved in is discussed
under Note 16 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended February 28, 2007.

Our stock price and the price of the Notes could become more volatile and your investment could lose value.

All of the factors discussed in this section could affect our stock price and the price of the Notes. The timing of announcements in
the public market regarding new products, product enhancements or technological advances by our competitors or us, and any
announcements by us of acquisitions, major transactions, or management changes could also affect our stock price and the price
of the Notes. Our stock price and the price of the Notes are subject to speculation in the press and the analyst community, changes
in recommendations or earnings estimates by financial analysts, changes in investors� or analysts� valuation measures for our stock,
our credit ratings and market trends unrelated to our performance. A significant drop in our stock price and the price of the Notes
could also expose us to the risk of securities class actions lawsuits, which could result in substantial costs and divert management�s
attention and resources, which could adversely affect our business.
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Use of proceeds
We estimate that the net proceeds from this offering will be approximately $                 after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and our estimated offering expenses. We will use the net proceeds to fund the redemption on May 30, 2007, of the
Existing Floating Rate Notes. To the extent our net proceeds from this offering exceed the amount needed to fund such
redemption, we intend to use such excess amount for general corporate purposes, which may include stock repurchases,
repayment of other indebtedness (such as the Commercial Paper Notes) and future acquisitions.

The Existing Floating Rate Notes bear interest at a rate equal to USD LIBOR plus 0.23% per year and mature on January 13, 2009.
As of February 28, 2007, the effective interest rate on the Existing Floating Rate Notes was 5.59%. The Commercial Paper Notes
were issued on April 11 and 12, 2007. The maturities of the Commercial Paper Notes are between two weeks and three months,
with approximately 93% of the Commercial Paper Notes having maturities of one month, two months or three months. The
weighted average yield of the Commercial Paper Notes, including issuance costs, is 5.328%. Proceeds from the issuance of
Commercial Paper Notes were used primarily to finance a portion of our acquisition of Hyperion Solutions Corporation completed
on April 19, 2007.

S-22

Edgar Filing: ORACLE CORP - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 29



Table of Contents

Capitalization
The following table sets forth a summary of Oracle�s consolidated capitalization on an actual and as adjusted basis as of
February 28, 2007. Our consolidated capitalization, as adjusted, gives effect to the issuance of the Notes offered hereby and the
redemption of the Existing Floating Rate Notes, but does not reflect the $1.7 billion of Commercial Paper Notes we issued in April
2007.

February 28, 2007

(In millions) Actual
As

Adjusted

Long-term debt:
2009 Notes offered hereby $ � $
2010 Notes offered hereby �
Existing Floating Rate Notes 1,500 �
5.00% Senior Notes due 2011(1) 2,244 2,244
5.25% Senior Notes due 2016(1) 1,990 1,990
Other long-term debt 2 2

Total long-term debt, including current portion 5,736

Stockholders� equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value�authorized: 1.0 shares; outstanding: none � �
Common stock, $0.01 par value and additional paid in capital�authorized: 11,000 shares; outstanding:
5,136 shares at February 28, 2007 10,004 10,004
Retained earnings 5,511 5,511
Accumulated other comprehensive income 276 276

Total stockholders� equity 15,791 15,791

Total capitalization $ 21,527 $

(1) Balances reflect the principal amounts of the notes, net of amortized issue discounts of $6 million and $10 million for the 2011 Senior Notes
and 2016 Senior Notes, respectively.
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Description of notes
The summary herein of certain provisions of the indenture does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its
entirety by reference to, all the provisions of the indenture, a form of which is available upon request from us.

General

The 2009 Notes will mature on             , 2009 and the 2010 Notes will mature on             , 2010. Interest on each series of Notes
will accrue from             , 2007, or from the most recent interest payment date on which interest has been paid or provided for, and
will be payable quarterly on             ,             ,             and             , beginning on             , 2007. All payments of interest will be
made to the persons in whose names the Notes are registered at the close of business on the business day preceding the interest
payment date. Interest on the Notes will be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days in an interest period and a 360-day
year.

The Notes will be issued under an indenture dated January 13, 2006, by and among Oracle Corporation (formerly known as Ozark
Holding Inc.), Oracle Systems Corporation (formerly known as Oracle Corporation) and Citibank, N.A., as amended by a
supplemental indenture dated as of May 9, 2007 by and among Oracle Corporation, Citibank, N.A. and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N.A., and as may be further supplemented from time to time. Citibank, N.A. is the trustee for all securities issued
under the indenture prior to May 9, 2007, including the Existing Floating Rate Notes, and The Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A. is the trustee for any and all securities issued thereunder on or after May 9, 2007, including the Notes. The Bank of New York
Trust Company, NA. is referred to herein as the �trustee.� In accordance with the terms of the indenture, Oracle Systems Corporation
is no longer an obligor under the indenture and will not be an obligor on the Notes. Oracle Corporation will be the sole obligor on
the Notes.

The indenture does not limit the ability of Oracle Corporation to incur additional unsecured indebtedness. The Notes will be the
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Oracle Corporation and will rank pari passu with its other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness. The Notes will be effectively subordinated to all indebtedness and liabilities (including trade
payables and preferred stock obligations) of Oracle Corporation�s subsidiaries and will be effectively subordinated to its secured
indebtedness, if any, and that of its subsidiaries, if any. As of February 28, 2007, Oracle had approximately $13.6 billion of total
liabilities on a consolidated basis, including $5.7 billion of senior notes and $5 million of capital leases outstanding. Of this amount,
subsidiaries of Oracle Corporation had approximately $6.8 billion of liabilities (including trade payables). The Notes will be
effectively subordinated to all such indebtedness of Oracle Corporation�s subsidiaries, and the rights of creditors of such
subsidiaries shall have priority over the rights of the holders of the Notes as creditors of Oracle Corporation. In addition, in April
2007, Oracle Corporation issued $1.7 billion of Commercial Paper Notes, which rank pari passu with the Existing Floating Rate
Notes and will rank pari passu with the 2009 Notes and 2010 Notes.

The Notes will be issued in book-entry form only in denominations of $2,000 and multiples of $1,000 thereafter.

Interest rate determination for the notes

The Notes will bear interest for each interest period at a rate determined by the calculation agent. The calculation agent is The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., until such time as
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Oracle Corporation appoints a successor calculation agent. The interest rate on the 2009 Notes for a particular interest period will
be a per annum rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR as determined on the interest determination date plus     %. The interest
rate on the 2010 Notes for a particular interest period will be a per annum rate equal to three-month USD LIBOR as determined on
the interest determination date plus     %. The interest determination date for an interest period will be the second London business
day preceding such interest period. Promptly upon determination, the calculation agent will inform the trustee and Oracle
Corporation of the interest rate for the next interest period for each series of Notes. Absent manifest error, the determination of the
interest rate by the calculation agent shall be binding and conclusive on the holders of Notes, the trustee and Oracle Corporation.

A London business day is a day on which dealings in deposits in U.S. dollars are transacted in the London interbank market.

On any interest determination date, USD LIBOR will be equal to the offered rate for deposits in U.S. dollars having an index
maturity of three months, in amounts of at least $1,000,000, as such rate appears on �Reuters Page LIBOR01� at approximately
11:00 a.m., London time, on such interest determination date. If, on an interest determination date, such rate does not appear on
the �Reuters Page LIBOR01� as of 11:00 a.m. (London time), or if the �Reuters Page LIBOR01� is not available on such date, the
calculation agent will obtain such rate from Bloomberg L.P.�s page �BBAM.�

If no offered rate appears on �Reuters Page LIBOR01� or Bloomberg L.P. page �BBAM� on an interest determination date at
approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, then the calculation agent (after consultation with Oracle Corporation) will select four major
banks in the London interbank market and shall request each of their principal London offices to provide a quotation of the rate at
which three-month deposits in U.S. dollars in amounts of at least $1,000,000 are offered by it to prime banks in the London
interbank market, on that date and at that time, that is representative of single transactions at that time. If at least two quotations
are provided, USD LIBOR will be the arithmetic average of the quotations provided. Otherwise, the calculation agent will select
three major banks in New York City and shall request each of them to provide a quotation of the rate offered by them at
approximately 11:00 a.m., New York City time, on the interest determination date for loans in U.S. dollars to leading European
banks having an index maturity of three months for the applicable interest period in an amount of at least $1,000,000 that is
representative of single transactions at that time. If three quotations are provided, USD LIBOR will be the arithmetic average of the
quotations provided. Otherwise, the rate of USD LIBOR for the next interest period will be set equal to the rate of USD LIBOR for
the then current interest period.

Upon request from any noteholder, the calculation agent will provide the interest rate in effect on the relevant series of Notes, for
the current interest period and, if it has been determined, the interest rate to be in effect for the next interest period.

Dollar amounts resulting from such calculation will be rounded to the nearest cent, with one-half cent being rounded upward.

Interest on each series of Notes will accrue from             , 2007, or from the most recent interest payment date to which interest has
been paid or provided for; provided, that if an interest payment date for the Notes falls on a day that is not a business day the
interest payment date shall be postponed to the next succeeding business day, unless such next succeeding business day would
be in the following month, in which case the interest payment date shall be the immediately preceding business day. Interest on the
Notes will be paid to but excluding the
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relevant interest payment date. Oracle Corporation will make interest payments on the Notes quarterly in arrears on             ,
            ,             and             of each year, beginning on             , 2007. All payments of interest will be made to the persons in
whose names the Notes are registered at the close of business on the business day preceding the interest payment date for the
Notes. Interest on the Notes will be calculated on the basis of the actual number of days in an interest period and a 360-day year.

Issuance of additional notes

Oracle Corporation may, without the consent of the holders, increase the principal amount of either series of Notes by issuing
additional Notes of such series in the future on the same terms and conditions, except for any differences in the issue price and
interest accrued prior to the issue date of the additional Notes. The additional Notes of a series may have the same CUSIP number
as the applicable series of Notes. Under the indenture, each series of Notes and any additional Notes of such series Oracle
Corporation may issue will be treated as a single series for all purposes under the indenture, including for purposes of determining
whether the required percentage of the holders of record has given approval or consent to an amendment or waiver or joined in
directing the trustee to take certain actions on behalf of all holders.

Oracle Corporation also may, without the consent of the holders, issue other series of debt securities under the indenture in the
future on terms and conditions different from the series of Notes offered hereby.

No sinking fund; no optional redemption

The Notes will not be entitled to any sinking fund. The Notes will not be redeemable by Oracle Corporation prior to maturity.

Book-entry; delivery and form; global note

The Notes of each series sold in the United States will be issued in the form of one or more fully registered global notes without
interest coupons which will be deposited with, or on behalf of, The Depository Trust Company (�DTC�), New York, New York, and
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, for the accounts of participants in DTC. Unless and until exchanged, in
whole or in part, for Notes in definitive registered form, a global note may not be transferred except as a whole (i) by the depositary
for such global note to a nominee of such depositary, (ii) by a nominee of such depositary to such depositary or another nominee of
such depositary or (iii) by such depositary or any such nominee to a successor of such depositary or a nominee of such successor.

Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global note will be limited to persons, called participants, that have accounts with
the depositary (currently DTC) or persons that may hold interests through participants in DTC. Investors may hold their interests in
a global note directly through Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System (�Euroclear�) and Clearstream Banking,
société anonyme (�Clearstream�), if they are participants in such systems, or indirectly through organizations that are participants in
such systems. Euroclear and Clearstream will hold interests in a global note on behalf of their participants through their respective
depositaries, which in turn will hold such interests in the global note in customers� securities accounts in the depositaries� names on
the books of DTC.
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Upon transfer of a definitive note, the definitive note will be exchanged for an interest in a global note, and the transferee will be
required to hold its interest through a participant in DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable.

Upon the issuance of a registered global note, the depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the
participants� accounts with the respective principal or face amounts of the relevant series of Notes beneficially owned by the
participants. Any dealers, underwriters or agents participating in the distribution of the Notes will designate the accounts to be
credited. Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global note will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership interests will
be effected only through, records maintained by the depositary, with respect to interests of participants, and on the records of
participants, with respect to interests of persons holding through participants.

So long as the depositary, or its nominee, is the registered owner of a registered global note, that depositary or its nominee, as the
case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the relevant series of Notes represented by the registered global note
for all purposes under the indenture. Except as described below, owners of beneficial interests in a registered global note will not
be entitled to have the Notes represented by the registered global note registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to
receive physical delivery of the Notes in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the Notes under the
indenture. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a registered global note must rely on the procedures of the
depositary for that registered global note and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which
the person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the indenture. The laws of some states may require that some
purchasers of Notes take physical delivery of these Notes in definitive form. Such laws may impair the ability to transfer beneficial
interests in a global note.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Notes deposited by participants with DTC will be registered in the name of DTC�s nominee,
Cede & Co. The deposit of the Notes with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial
ownership. DTC will have no knowledge of the actual beneficial owners of the Notes. DTC�s records reflect only the identity of the
direct participants to whose accounts such Notes are credited, which may or may not be the beneficial owners. The participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Oracle Corporation will make payments due on the Notes to Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, in immediately available funds. DTC�s
practice upon receipt of any payment of principal, premium, interest or other distribution of underlying securities or other property to
holders on that registered global note, is to immediately credit participants� accounts in amounts proportionate to their respective
beneficial interests in that registered global note as shown on the records of the depositary. Payments by participants to owners of
beneficial interests in a registered global note held through participants will be governed by standing customer instructions and
customary practices, as is now the case with the securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in �street
name,� and will be the responsibility of those participants. Payment to Cede & Co. is the responsibility of Oracle Corporation.
Disbursement of such payments to direct participants is the responsibility of Cede & Co. Disbursement of such payments to the
beneficial owners is the responsibility of direct and indirect participants. None of Oracle Corporation, the trustee or any other agent
of ours or any agent of the trustee will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to payments made on
account of beneficial
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ownership interests in the registered global note or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to those beneficial
ownership interests.

Transfers between participants in Euroclear and Clearstream will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with their
respective rules and operating procedures. If a holder requires physical delivery of a definitive note for any reason, including to sell
Notes to persons in jurisdictions that require such delivery of such Notes or to pledge such Notes, such holder must transfer its
interest in the relevant global note in accordance with the normal procedures of DTC and the procedures set forth in the indenture.

Cross-market transfers between DTC, on the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Euroclear or Clearstream participants, on
the other, will be effected by DTC in accordance with DTC rules on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, by its
respective depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to Euroclear or Clearstream, as
the case may be, by the counterparty in such system in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its established
deadlines (Brussels time). Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements,
deliver instructions to its respective depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving
interests in the global note in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day funds
settlement applicable to DTC. Euroclear participants and Clearstream participants may not deliver instructions directly to the
depositories for Euroclear or Clearstream.

Because of the time zone differences, the securities account of a Euroclear or Clearstream participant purchasing an interest in the
global note from a DTC participant will be credited during the securities settlement processing day (which must be a business day
for Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be) immediately following the DTC settlement date, and such credit of any
transaction�s interests in the global note settled during such processing day will be reported to the relevant Euroclear or
Clearstream participant on such day. Cash received in Euroclear or Clearstream as a result of sales of interests in a global note by
or through a Euroclear or Clearstream participant to a DTC participant will be received with value on the DTC settlement date, but
will be available in the relevant Euroclear or Clearstream cash account only as of the business day following settlement in DTC.

Oracle Corporation expects that DTC will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes only at the direction of one or
more participants to whose account the DTC interests in a global note are credited and only in respect of such portion of the
aggregate principal amount of the Notes as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction. However, if
there is an event of default under the Notes, DTC will exchange each global note for definitive notes, which it will distribute to its
participants.

Although Oracle Corporation expects that DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream will agree to the foregoing procedures in order to
facilitate transfers of interests in each global note among participants of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, DTC, Euroclear and
Clearstream are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued
at any time. Neither Oracle Corporation nor the trustee will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear or
Clearstream or their participants or indirect participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing
their operations.
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If the depositary for any of the Notes represented by a registered global note is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as
depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, and a successor depositary registered as a
clearing agency under the Exchange Act is not appointed by Oracle Corporation within 90 days, Oracle Corporation will issue
Notes in definitive form in exchange for the registered global note that had been held by the depositary. Any Notes issued in
definitive form in exchange for a registered global note will be registered in the name or names that the depositary gives to the
trustee or other relevant agent of or the trustee. It is expected that the depositary�s instructions will be based upon directions
received by the depositary from participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in the registered global note that had
been held by the depositary. In addition, Oracle Corporation may at any time determine that the Notes of either series shall no
longer be represented by a global note and will issue Notes in definitive form in exchange for such global note pursuant to the
procedure described above.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a �banking organization� within the meaning of
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a �clearing corporation� within the meaning of the New York
Uniform Commercial Code and a �clearing agency� registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. DTC was created to hold securities of its participants and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of
securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, among its participants in such securities through electronic computerized
book-entry changes in accounts of the participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates.
DTC�s participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other
organizations, some of whom own DTC. Access to DTC�s book-entry system is also available to others, such as banks, brokers,
dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a participant, either directly or indirectly.
The rules applicable to DTC and its participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the �SEC�).

Euroclear and Clearstream hold securities for participating organizations. They also facilitate the clearance and settlement of
securities transactions between their respective participants through electronic book-entry changes in the accounts of such
participants. Euroclear and Clearstream provide various services to their participants, including the safekeeping, administration,
clearance, settlement, lending and borrowing of internationally traded securities. Euroclear and Clearstream interface with domestic
securities markets. Euroclear and Clearstream participants are financial institutions such as underwriters, securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies and certain other organizations. Indirect access to Euroclear or Clearstream is also available to
others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear
or Clearstream participant, either directly or indirectly.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC�s book-entry system, as well as information regarding Euroclear and
Clearstream, has been obtained from sources that Oracle Corporation believes to be reliable, but Oracle Corporation takes no
responsibility for its accuracy or completeness. Oracle Corporation assumes no responsibility for the performance by DTC,
Euroclear, Clearstream or their respective participants of their respective obligations, including obligations that they have under the
rules and procedures that govern their operations.
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Ratings

Moody�s Investor Service, Inc., Standard and Poor�s Rating Services and Fitch Ratings currently rate Oracle Corporation�s long-term
debt A2, A and A, respectively.

Moody�s Investor Service, Inc. assigns a long-term debt rating of A to corporate obligations considered upper-medium grade and
subject to low credit risk. Moody�s appends the numerical modifier 2 to indicate a mid-rage ranking within the A rating classification.

Standard and Poor�s Rating Services assigns a debt rating of A where the obligor�s capacity to meet its financial obligation is
deemed to be strong. S&P considers obligations rated A to be somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in
circumstances and economic conditions than obligations rated AA or AAA, where the obligors� capacity to meet their obligations are
considered very strong and extremely strong, respectively.

A rating of A from Fitch Ratings denotes high credit quality and expectations of low credit risk. Fitch considers the capacity for
payment of financial commitments with this rating to be strong, although it may be more vulnerable to changes in circumstances or
economic conditions than is the case for ratings of AA or AAA, which denote very high credit quality and highest credit quality,
respectively.

Notices

Notices to holders of the Notes will be made by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the addresses that appear on the security
register of the Notes.

Concerning our relationship with the trustee

Oracle Corporation maintains ordinary banking relationships and credit facilities with The Bank of New York, an affiliate of the
trustee.
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Material U.S. federal income tax consequences
In the opinion of Davis Polk & Wardwell, the following are the material U.S. federal income tax consequences of ownership and
disposition of the Notes. This discussion only applies to Notes that meet all of the following conditions:

� they are purchased by those initial holders who purchase Notes at the �issue price,� which will equal the first price to the public
(not including bond houses, brokers or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents
or wholesalers) at which a substantial amount of the Notes is sold for money; and

� they are held as capital assets.
This discussion does not describe all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to holders in light of their particular
circumstances or to holders subject to special rules, such as:

� tax-exempt organizations;

� regulated investment companies;

� real estate investment trusts;

� traders in securities that elect the mark-to-market method of accounting for their securities;

� certain former citizens and long-term residents of the United States;

� certain financial institutions;

� insurance companies;

� dealers in securities or foreign currencies;

� persons holding Notes as part of a hedge, straddle or other integrated transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, or
persons deemed to sell the Notes under the constructive sale provisions of the Internal Revenue Code;

� U.S. Holders (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar;

� partnerships or other entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes; or
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� persons subject to the alternative minimum tax.
This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended to the date hereof (the �Code�), administrative
pronouncements, judicial decisions and final, temporary and proposed Treasury Regulations, changes to any of which subsequent
to the date of this offering memorandum may affect the tax consequences described herein. Persons considering the purchase of
Notes are urged to consult their tax advisors with regard to the application of the U.S. federal income tax laws to their particular
situations as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, local or foreign taxing jurisdiction.

Tax consequences to U.S. holders

As used herein, the term �U.S. Holder� means a beneficial owner of a Note that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

� an individual citizen or resident of the United States;
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� a corporation, or other entity taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, created or organized in or under the
laws of the United States or of any political subdivision thereof; or

� an estate or trust the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.
Payments of interest

The Notes will be issued without original issue discount for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, interest paid on a Note
will be taxable to a U.S. Holder as ordinary interest income at the time it accrues or is received in accordance with the holder�s
method of accounting for federal income tax purposes.

Sale, exchange, retirement or other disposition of the Notes

Upon the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition of a Note, a U.S. Holder will recognize taxable gain or loss equal
to the difference between the amount realized on the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition and the holder�s
adjusted tax basis in the Note. For these purposes, the amount realized does not include any amount attributable to accrued
interest. Amounts attributable to accrued interest are treated as interest as described under �Payments of Interest� above.

Gain or loss realized on the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition of a Note will generally be capital gain or loss
and will be long-term capital gain or loss if at the time of the sale, exchange, retirement or other taxable disposition the Note has
been held by the holder for more than one year. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Backup withholding and information reporting

Information returns will be filed with the Internal Revenue Service in connection with payments on the Notes and the proceeds from
a sale or other disposition of the Notes. A U.S. Holder will be subject to U.S. backup withholding on these payments if the U.S.
Holder fails to provide its taxpayer identification number to the paying agent and comply with certain certification procedures or
otherwise establish an exemption from backup withholding. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to a U.S.
Holder will be allowed as a credit against the U.S. Holder�s U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle the U.S. Holder to a
refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

Tax consequences to non-U.S. holders

As used herein, the term �Non-U.S. Holder� means a beneficial owner of a Note that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

� an individual who is classified as a nonresident for U.S. federal income tax purposes;
� a foreign corporation; or
� a foreign estate or trust.
�Non-U.S. Holder� does not include a holder who is an individual present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable
year of disposition of a Note and who is not otherwise a resident
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of the United States for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Such a holder is urged to consult his or her own tax advisor regarding
the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the sale, exchange, or other disposition of a Note.

Payments on the Notes

Subject to the discussion below concerning backup withholding, payments of principal, interest and premium on the Notes by
Oracle Corporation or any paying agent to any Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, provided that, in
the case of interest,

� the holder does not own, actually or constructively, 10 percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock
of Oracle Corporation entitled to vote and is not a controlled foreign corporation related, directly or indirectly, to Oracle
Corporation through stock ownership is not a bank whose receipt of interest on the Notes is described in Section 88(1)(c)(3)(A)
of the Code; and

� the certification requirement described below has been fulfilled with respect to the beneficial owner, as discussed below.
If a Non-U.S. Holder cannot satisfy the requirements described above, payments of interest on the Notes to such Non-U.S. Holder
will be subject to a 30% U.S. federal withholding tax, unless the Non-U.S. Holder provides Oracle Corporation with a properly
executed Internal Revenue Service Form W-8BEN claiming an exemption from or reduction in withholding under the benefit of an
applicable income tax treaty.

Certification requirement

Interest on a Note will not be exempt from withholding tax unless the beneficial owner of that Note certifies on Internal Revenue
Service Form W-8BEN, under penalties of perjury, that it is not a United States person (as defined in the Code). Special
certification rules apply to Notes that are held through foreign intermediaries.

If a Non-U.S. Holder of a Note is engaged in a trade or business in the United States, and if interest on the Note is effectively
connected with the conduct of this trade or business, the Non-U.S. Holder, although exempt from the withholding tax discussed in
the preceding paragraphs, will generally be taxed in the same manner as a U.S. Holder (see �Tax Consequences to U.S. Holders�
above), subject to an applicable income tax treaty providing otherwise, except that the holder will be required to provide to Oracle
Corporation a properly executed Internal Revenue Service Form W-8ECI in order to claim an exemption from withholding tax.
These holders should consult their own tax advisors with respect to other U.S. tax consequences of the ownership and disposition
of Notes, including the possible imposition of a branch profits tax at a rate of 30% (or a lower treaty rate).

Sale, exchange or other disposition of the Notes

Subject to the discussion below concerning backup withholding, a Non-U.S. Holder of a Note will not be subject to U.S. federal
income tax on gain realized on the sale, exchange or other disposition of such Note, unless the gain is effectively connected with
the conduct by the holder of a trade or business in the United States, subject to an applicable income tax treaty providing
otherwise.
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Backup withholding and information reporting

Information returns will be filed with the Internal Revenue Service in connection with payments on the Notes. Unless the Non-U.S.
Holder complies with certification procedures to establish that it is not a United States person, information returns may be filed with
the Internal Revenue Service in connection with the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of the Notes and the Non-U.S. Holder
may be subject to U.S. backup withholding on payments on the Notes or on the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of the
Notes. The certification procedures required to claim the exemption from withholding tax on interest described above will satisfy the
certification requirements necessary to avoid the backup withholding as well. The amount of any backup withholding from a
payment to a Non-U.S. Holder will be allowed as a credit against the Non-U.S. Holder�s U.S. federal income tax liability and may
entitle the Non-U.S. Holder to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the Internal Revenue Service.

S-34

Edgar Filing: ORACLE CORP - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 42



Table of Contents

Underwriting
Under the terms and subject to the conditions contained in an underwriting agreement dated er:none;border-bottom:double
windowtext 2.25pt;padding:0in 0in 0in 0in;width:16.5%;">

27,271,755

$

25,008,688

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:

Interest paid

$

182,711

$
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207,571

Income taxes paid

$

7,988

$

71,328

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:

Preferred dividends declared, not paid

$

�

$
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57,613

See accompanying notes to condensed financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(unaudited)

1. BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the �Company�) was incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and designs, develops, manufactures, and markets
safety syringes and other safety medical products for the healthcare profession.  The Company began to develop its manufacturing operations in
1995.  The Company�s manufacturing and administrative facilities are located in Little Elm, Texas.  The Company�s primary products with Notice
of Substantial Equivalence to the FDA are the VanishPoint® 0.5mL insulin syringe; 1mL tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigen syringes; the
0.5mL, 3mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes; the small diameter tube adapter; the blood collection tube holder; the allergy tray; the IV safety catheter;
the Patient Safe® syringe; the Patient Safe® Luer Cap; and the VanishPoint® Blood Collection Set.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying condensed financial statements are unaudited and, in the opinion of Management, reflect all adjustments that are necessary
for a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations for the periods presented.  All such adjustments are of a normal and
recurring nature.  The results of operations for the periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the entire
year.  The condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statement disclosures contained in the Company�s
audited financial statements incorporated into its Form 10-K filed on April 1, 2013 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (�GAAP�) requires Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates.
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Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash, money market accounts, and investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenue is recognized.  No product has been consigned to customers.  The Company�s allowance
for doubtful accounts is primarily determined by review of specific trade receivables.  Those accounts that are doubtful of collection are included
in the allowance.  This provision is reviewed to determine the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts.  Trade receivables are charged
off when there is certainty as to their being uncollectible.  Trade receivables are considered delinquent when payment has not been made within
contract terms.

The Company requires certain customers to make a prepayment prior to beginning production or shipment of their order.  Customers may apply
such prepayments to their outstanding invoices or pay the invoice and continue to carry forward the deposit for future orders.  Such amounts are
included in Other accrued liabilities on the Condensed Balance Sheets and are shown in Note 5, Other Accrued Liabilities.
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The Company records an allowance for estimated returns as a reduction to Accounts receivable and Gross sales.  Historically, returns have been
immaterial.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost being determined using actual average cost.  The Company compares the average
cost to the market price and records the lower value.  Management considers such factors as the amount of inventory on hand and in the
distribution channel, estimated time to sell such inventory, the shelf life of inventory, and current market conditions when determining excess or
obsolete inventories.  A reserve is established for any excess or obsolete inventories or they may be written off.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost.  Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.  Cost includes
major expenditures for improvements and replacements which extend useful lives or increase capacity and interest cost associated with
significant capital additions.  Gains or losses from property disposals are included in income.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Production equipment 3 to 13 years
Office furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Buildings 39 years
Building improvements 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets using an assessment of the estimated undiscounted future cash flows related to
such assets.  In the event that assets are found to be carried at amounts which are in excess of estimated gross future cash flows, the assets will
be adjusted for impairment to a level commensurate with fair value determined using a discounted cash flow analysis of the underlying assets.

The Company�s property, plant, and equipment primarily consists of buildings, land, assembly equipment for syringes, molding machines, molds,
office equipment, furniture, and fixtures.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and consist primarily of patents and trademarks which are amortized using the straight-line method over 17
years.

Financial instruments

The Company estimates the fair market value of financial instruments through the use of public market prices, quotes from financial institutions,
and other available information.  Judgment is required in interpreting data to develop estimates of market value and, accordingly, amounts are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current market exchange.  Short-term financial instruments, including cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other liabilities, consist primarily of instruments without extended maturities,
the fair value of which, based on Management�s estimates, equals their recorded values.  The fair value of long-term liabilities, based on
Management�s estimates, approximates their reported values.
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Concentration risks

The Company�s financial instruments exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, and accounts
receivable.  Cash balances, some of which exceed federally insured limits, are maintained in financial institutions; however, Management
believes the institutions are of high credit quality.  The majority of accounts receivable are due from companies which are well-established
entities.  As a consequence, Management considers any exposure from concentrations of credit risks to be limited.

The following table reflects our significant customers in 2013 and 2012:

Nine Months ended
September 30, 2013

Nine Months ended
September 30, 2012

Three Months ended
September 30, 2013

Three Months ended
September 30, 2012

Number of significant customers 2 3 3 2
Aggregate dollar amount of net sales to
significant customers $7.6 million $10.6 million $4.3 million $3.4 million
Percentage of net sales to significant
customers 32.9% 41.3% 47.4% 35.6%

The Company manufactures syringes in Little Elm, Texas as well as utilizing manufacturers in China.  The Company purchases most of its
product components from single suppliers, including needle adhesives and packaging materials.  There are multiple sources of these materials. 
The Company obtained roughly 73.1% and 69.6% of its finished products in the first nine months of 2013 and 2012, respectively, from Double
Dove, a Chinese manufacturer.  Purchases from Double Dove aggregated 75.6% and 71.9% of finished products in the three month periods
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  In the event that the Company becomes unable to purchase such product from Double Dove,
the Company would need to find an alternate supplier for its 0.5mL insulin syringe, its 2 mL, 5mL, and 10mL syringes and its autodisable
syringe and increase domestic production for 1mL and 3mL syringes.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales when title and risk of ownership passes to the customer, generally upon shipment.  Under certain contracts,
revenue is recorded on the basis of sales price to distributors, less contractual pricing allowances.  Contractual pricing allowances consist of:
(i) rebates granted to distributors who provide tracking reports which show, among other things, the facility that purchased the products, and
(ii) a provision for estimated contractual pricing allowances for products that the Company has not received tracking reports.  Rebates are
recorded when issued and are applied against the customer�s receivable balance.  Distributors receive a rebate for the difference between the
Wholesale Acquisition Cost and the appropriate contract price as reflected on a tracking report provided by the distributor to the Company.  If
product is sold by a distributor to an entity that has no contract, there is a standard rebate (lower than a contracted rebate) given to the
distributor.  One of the purposes of the rebate is to encourage distributors to submit tracking reports to the Company. The provision for
contractual pricing allowances is reviewed at the end of each quarter and adjusted for changes in levels of products for which there is no tracking
report.  Additionally, if it becomes clear that tracking reports will not be provided by individual distributors, the provision is further adjusted. 
The estimated contractual allowance is included in Accounts payable and deducted from revenues in the Statements of Operations.  Accounts
payable included estimated contractual allowances for $4.4 million and $3.0 million as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively.  The terms and conditions of contractual pricing allowances are governed by contracts between the Company and its distributors. 
Revenue for shipments directly to end-users is recognized when title and risk of ownership pass from the Company.  Any product shipped or
distributed for evaluation purposes is expensed.

Edgar Filing: ORACLE CORP - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 50



Certain distributors have taken rebates to which they are not entitled, such as utilizing a rebate for products not purchased directly from the
Company.  The Company has been in discussions with the principal customers that claimed non-contractual rebates.  Major customers said they
have ceased the practices resulting in claiming non-contractual rebates.  Rebates can only be claimed on purchases made directly from the
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Company. The Company has established a reserve for the collectability of these non-contractual rebate amounts.  The expense for the reserve is
recorded in Operating expense, General and administrative.  The reserve for such non-contractual deductions is included in the allowance for
doubtful accounts.  There has been no change to the reserve regarding non-contractual rebates in the periods currently presented.

The Company�s domestic return policy is set forth in its standard Distribution Agreement.  This policy provides that a customer may return
incorrect shipments within 10 days following arrival at the distributor�s facility.  In all such cases the distributor must obtain an authorization
code from the Company and affix the code to the returned product.  The Company will not accept returned goods without a returned goods
authorization number.  The Company may refund the customer�s money or replace the product.

The Company�s domestic return policy also provides that a customer may return product that is overstocked.  Overstocking returns are limited to
two times in each 12-month period up to 1% of distributor�s total purchase of products for the prior 12-month period.  All product overstocks and
returns are subject to inspection and acceptance by the Company.

The Company�s international distribution agreements do not provide for any returns.

Litigation Proceeds

Proceeds from litigation are recognized when realizable.  Generally, realization is not reasonably assured and expected until proceeds are
collected.  See Note 6, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES, for a discussion of proceeds received from Becton Dickinson and
Company (�BD�) pursuant to a stipulation in the patent infringement case Retractable Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson
and Company, Civil Action No. 2:07-cv-250, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division.

Income taxes

The Company evaluates tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return for recognition in the financial statements based on whether it
is �more-likely-than-not� that a tax position will be sustained based upon the technical merits of the position.  Measurement of the tax position is
based upon the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company provides for deferred income taxes through utilizing an asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting based
on the tax effects of differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities, based on enacted rates expected to be in
effect when such differences reverse in future periods.  Deferred tax assets are periodically reviewed for realizability.  The Company has
established a valuation allowance for its net deferred tax asset as future taxable income cannot be reasonably assured.  Penalties and interest
related to income tax are classified as General and administrative expense and Interest expense, respectively, in the Condensed Statements of
Operations.
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Earnings per share

The Company computes basic earnings per share (�EPS�) by dividing net earnings for the period (adjusted for any cumulative dividends for the
period) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period.  Diluted EPS includes the determinants of basic EPS
and, in addition, reflects the dilutive effect, if any, of the common stock deliverable pursuant to stock options or common stock issuable upon the
conversion of convertible preferred stock and convertible debt.  The calculation of diluted EPS excluded 1,640,480 and 1,076,523 issued and
outstanding stock options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively; and 666,899 and 759,620 issued and
outstanding stock options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, as their effect was antidilutive.  The potential
dilution, if any, is shown on the following schedule:
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Three Months
Ended

September 30, 2013

Three Months
Ended

September 30, 2012

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, 2013

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, 2012
Net loss $ (940,384) $ (272,961) $ (4,788,653) $ (1,592,020)
Preferred dividend requirements (228,999) (229,527) (687,065) (688,581)
Loss applicable to common
shareholders $ (1,169,383) $ (502,488) $ (5,475,718) $ (2,280,601)
Weighted average common shares
outstanding - basic and diluted 26,719,608 26,972,818 27,000,158 25,870,073
Basic loss per share $ (0.04) $ (0.02) $ (0.20) $ (0.09)
Diluted loss per share $ (0.04) $ (0.02) $ (0.20) $ (0.09)

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling costs as part of Cost of sales in the Condensed Statements of Operations.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Company�s share-based payments are accounted for using the fair value method.  The Company records share-based compensation expense
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

Recent Pronouncement

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update (�ASU�) No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward
Exists (�ASU 2013-11�).  ASU 2013-11 requires, unless certain conditions exists, an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognized tax
benefit, to be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, similar tax loss, or
a tax credit carryforward.  ASU 2013-11 is effective prospectively for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption
permitted.  Retrospective application is also permitted.  The adoption of ASU 2013-11, effective with the Company�s reporting period beginning
January 1, 2014, is not expected to have an impact on the Company�s financial statements.

3. INVENTORIES
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Inventories consist of the following:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Raw materials $ 1,681,029 $ 1,692,133
Finished goods 4,671,170 3,537,872

6,352,199 5,230,005
Inventory reserve (239,752) (239,752)

$ 6,112,447 $ 4,990,253
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4. INCOME TAXES

The Company�s effective tax rate on the net loss before income taxes was (1.4)% and (1.7)% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2012, respectively.  For the three months ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012, the Company�s effective tax rate on
the net loss before income taxes was (7.1)% and (1.4)%, respectively.

5. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following:

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Prepayments from customers $ 1,216,157 $ 1,400,740
Accrued property taxes 307,342 �
Accrued professional fees 122,685 162,969
Other accrued expenses 132,386 101,961

$ 1,778,570 $ 1,665,670

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On May 19, 2010, final judgment was entered in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division for the Company
which ordered that the Company recover $5,000,000 plus prejudgment and post-judgment interest, and ordered a permanent injunction for BD�s
1mL and 3mL Integra syringes until the expiration of certain patents.  The permanent injunction was stayed for the longer of the exhaustion of
the appeal of the district court�s case or twelve months from May 19, 2010.  In June 2010, BD filed an appeal in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit appealing the final judgment entered on May 19, 2010.  In July 2011, a three-judge panel of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit reversed the district court�s judgment that BD�s 3mL Integra infringed the Company�s �224 patent and �077 patent.  The U.S. Court
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit affirmed the district court�s judgment that the 1mL Integra infringes the Company�s �244 and �733 patents.  The
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit also affirmed the district court�s judgment that the �077 patent is not invalid for anticipation or
obviousness.  The Company had petitioned for a rehearing by all the judges of the Federal Circuit as to whether the three-judge panel properly
construed the Company�s patent claim language in finding that the 3mL Integra did not infringe.  The Company�s petition for rehearing by all of
the judges of the Federal Circuit was denied with two dissents being issued.  The Company filed a petition for certiorari asking the Supreme
Court to review the matter.  That petition was denied in January of 2013.  On August 7, 2013, the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas issued an order adopting the Magistrate Judge�s Report and Recommendation and denying BD�s Rule 60 motion seeking a reduction in
damages.  On October 29, 2013, BD filed its Notice of Appeal of the August 7, 2013 order to the Federal Circuit.  On September 30, 2013, the
Company received payment of $7,724,826 (the �Judgment Amount�) from BD pursuant to a stipulation in this case.  The stipulation provides that
if, as a result of BD�s appeal of the District Court�s denial of BD�s Rule 60 motion, it is judicially determined that BD owes an amount less than
the Judgment Amount, BD shall be entitled to restitution by the Company of any excess payment, with interest.  Otherwise, the payment of the
Judgment Amount shall constitute satisfaction of the patent infringement judgment and BD shall owe no further money damages to the
Company in this case.  The Judgment Amount has been reflected as a current liability in the Condensed Balance Sheets since the proceeds are
not yet realizable.
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In May 2010, the Company and an officer�s suit against BD in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division
alleging violations of antitrust acts, false advertising, product disparagement, tortious interference, and unfair competition was reopened.  The
Company and an officer filed a Second Amended Complaint on July 23, 2010 setting forth additional detail regarding the allegations of BD�s
illegal conduct.  BD filed a motion to dismiss and the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division denied that motion
in part and granted it in part, granting the Company the right to re-plead certain allegations by May 13, 2011.  The Company and an officer filed
a Third Amended Complaint in May 2011, setting forth additional detail regarding the alleged illegal conduct by BD.  Trial was initially set for
February
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2012.  However, in January 2012 the parties agreed to a continuance to allow the petition for certiorari to be considered.  As stated above, the
petition was denied in January of 2013.  A hearing to re-set a trial date in light of BD�s motion for continuance was held May 3, 2013.  The trial
commenced on September 9, 2013 in Tyler, Texas, and the jury returned its verdict on September 19, 2013, finding that BD illegally engaged in
anticompetitive conduct with the intent to acquire or maintain monopoly power in the safety syringe market and engaged in false advertising
under the Lanham Act.  The jury awarded the Company $113,508,014 in damages for the antitrust claim, which is subject to being trebled
pursuant to statute.  A final judgment in this matter has not been entered by the Court yet.  The Court has set a hearing for post-trial motions on
December 12, 2013.  BD has stated that it plans to appeal the verdict.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdings, Inc. (�MDC�) sued the Company in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initially alleging that the Company is infringing two U.S. patents of MDC (6,179,812 and 7,090,656) that
are licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctive relief and unspecified damages.  The Company counterclaimed for declarations of
non-infringement, invalidity, and unenforceability of the asserted patents.  The plaintiffs subsequently dropped allegations with regard to patent
no. 7,090,656 and the Company subsequently dropped its counterclaims for unenforceability of the asserted patents.  The United States District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division conducted a claims construction hearing on September 25, 2008 and issued its
claims construction order on November 14, 2008.  The case has been stayed pending resolution of the Company�s first filed case against BD
described above.  As of November 7, 2013, there has been no activity in this case since the stay.

7. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Three Months
Ended

September 30, 2013

Three Months
Ended

September 30, 2012

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, 2013

Nine Months
Ended

September 30, 2012
U.S. sales $ 7,350,342 $ 7,157,486 $ 17,855,657 $ 19,943,687
North and South America sales
(excluding U.S.) 456,712 124,988 2,946,631 544,960
Other international sales 1,353,224 2,161,683 2,438,335 5,113,399
Total sales $ 9,160,278 $ 9,444,157 $ 23,240,623 $ 25,602,046

September 30, 2013 December 31, 2012
Long-lived assets
U.S. $ 10,916,085 $ 11,679,592
International $ 240,150 $ 220,058

The Company does not operate in separate reportable segments.  The Company has minimal long-lived assets in foreign countries.  Shipments to
international customers generally require a prepayment either by wire transfer or an irrevocable confirmed letter of credit.  The Company does
extend credit to international customers on some occasions depending upon certain criteria, including, but not limited to, the credit worthiness of
the customer, the stability of the country, banking restrictions, and the size of the order.  All transactions are in U.S. currency.

8. STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM
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On July 10, 2012, the Company authorized a Common Stock repurchase plan structured to comply with Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Under the plan, the Company purchased 316,909 and 655,818 shares in the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013, respectively.  The plan was terminated effective August 30, 2013.

Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Preferences, Rights And Limitations of the Series I Class B and Series II Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock, the Company would have been prohibited from purchasing its Common Stock while dividends were in arrears.  Therefore, to
facilitate the Common Stock repurchase plan, the Company paid dividends on the Series I Class B Preferred Stock in the amount of $12,938 on
January 21, April 22, and July 22, 2013.  The Company paid dividends to Series II Class B Preferred Stockholders in the amount of $44,675 on
the same dates listed in the preceding sentence.
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9.  STOCK OPTION GRANT

The Compensation and Benefits Committee approved a grant of a non-qualified stock option pursuant to the 2008 Stock Option Plan to Walter
O. Bigby, Jr. for the purchase of 50,000 shares of Common Stock on May 14, 2013.  Related share based compensation of $52,755 is included in
general and administrative expense in the accompanying Condensed Statements of Operations.

10.  DIVIDENDS

On October 21, 2013, the Board of Directors declared a dividend on the Series I Class B Preferred Stock in the amount of $12,938 which was
paid on November 11, 2013.  The Company also paid declared and paid dividends to Series II Class B Preferred Stockholders in the amount of
$44,675 on the same dates.  See Note 8 for information about dividends paid during the term of the Stock Repurchase Program.

Item 2.       Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in this filing containing the words �could,� �may,� �believes,� �anticipates,� �intends,� �expects,� and similar such
words constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.  Any forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to
be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.  Such
factors include, among others, our ability to maintain liquidity, our maintenance of patent protection, the impact of current litigation, our ability
to maintain favorable supplier arrangements and relationships, our ability to quickly increase capacity in response to an increase in demand, our
ability to access the market, our ability to maintain or lower production costs, our ability to continue to finance research and development as well
as operations and expansion of production, the increased interest of larger market players, specifically Becton Dickinson and Company (�BD�), in
providing devices to the safety market, and other factors referenced in Item 1A. Risk Factors in Part II.  Given these uncertainties, undue
reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We have been manufacturing and marketing our products since 1997.  Safety syringes comprised 98.6% of our sales in the first nine months of
2013. We also manufacture and market the blood collection tube holder, IV safety catheter, and VanishPoint® Blood Collection Set.  We
currently provide other safety medical products in addition to safety products utilizing retractable technology.  One such product is the Patient
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Safe® syringe, which is uniquely designed to reduce the risk of bloodstream infections resulting from catheter hub contamination.

Historically, unit sales have increased in the latter part of the year due, in part, to the demand for syringes during the flu season.

Our products have been and continue to be distributed nationally and internationally through numerous distributors.  Although we have made
limited progress in some areas, such as the alternate care market, our volumes are not as high as they should be given the nature and quality of
our products and the federal and state legislation requiring the use of safe needle devices. The alternate care market is composed of alternate care
facilities that provide long-term nursing and out-patient surgery, emergency care, and physician services.
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We have reported in the past that our progress is limited principally due to exclusive marketing practices engaged in by BD, the dominant maker
and seller of disposable syringes.  On September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned a verdict in our litigation against BD, finding that BD illegally
engaged in anticompetitive conduct with the intent to acquire or maintain monopoly power in the safety syringe market and engaged in false
advertising under the Lanham Act.  The jury awarded us $113,508,014 in damages for the antitrust claim, which is subject to being trebled
pursuant to statute.  A final judgment in this matter has not been entered by the Court yet.  The Court has set a hearing for post-trial motions on
December 12, 2013.  BD has stated that it plans to appeal the verdict.  We have not received the $113,508,014 or any other amounts pursuant to
the verdict in the aforementioned antitrust litigation against BD.

We continue to pursue various strategies to have better access to the hospital market, as well as other markets, including attempting to gain
access to the market through our sales efforts, our innovative technology, introduction of new products, and, when necessary, litigation.

In the event we continue to have only limited market access and the cash provided by operations becomes insufficient, we would take additional
cost cutting measures to reduce cash requirements.  Such measures could result in the reduction of units being produced, the reduction of
workforce, the reduction of salaries of officers and other nonhourly employees, and the deferral of royalty payments.  We took such actions at
the end of the second quarter of 2009.  All employees affected by the salary reduction had their salaries increased by the amount of the
reduction.  Such increase was effective for most employees on August 6, 2012 and was effective for four of our executive officers on
October 28, 2013.

On September 30, 2013, we received payment of $7,724,826 (the �Judgment Amount�) from BD pursuant to a stipulation in the patent
infringement case Retractable Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company, Civil Action No. 2:07-cv-250, in the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division.  The stipulation provides that if, as a result of BD�s appeal of the District
Court�s denial of BD�s Rule 60(B)(5) motion, it is judicially determined that BD owes an amount less than the Judgment Amount, BD shall be
entitled to restitution by us of any excess payment, with interest.  Otherwise, the payment of the Judgment Amount shall constitute satisfaction
of the patent infringement judgment and BD shall owe no further money damages to us in the patent infringement case.  The Judgment Amount
is included as cash on the balance sheet and shown as a liability on the balance sheet under �Litigation proceeds subject to stipulation�.  The
Judgment Amount is only related to the patent infringement portion of the claims against BD.

Section 4191 of the Internal Revenue Code, enacted by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 in conjunction with the
Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act provides for an excise tax of 2.3% on medical devices.  At the present time the excise tax is
applicable to domestic sales of our products, except those which are sold to exempt organizations.  The majority of our sales are domestic and
not in the retail market.  The tax is imposed on sales, not profits.  We estimate the impact of this tax to be in excess of one million dollars in
2013.  There is no assurance this tax can be passed along to our customers.  Through November 4, 2013, we have paid $769 thousand in Medical
Device Excise Taxes.

We have brought additional molding operations to Little Elm as a cost saving measure.  The addition of four molding machines in 2012 was part
of that endeavor.  We continue to focus on methods of upgrading our manufacturing capability and efficiency in order to reduce costs.

On July 10, 2012, we authorized a Common Stock repurchase plan structured to comply with Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.  Under the plan, we purchased 316,909 and 655,818 shares in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013,
respectively.  The plan was terminated effective August 30, 2013.
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Pursuant to the Certificates of Designation, Preferences, Rights And Limitations of the Series I Class B and Series II Class B Convertible
Preferred Stock, we would be prohibited from purchasing our Common Stock while dividends were in arrears.  Therefore, to facilitate the
Common Stock repurchase plan, we paid quarterly dividends on the Series I Class B and Series II Class B Preferred Stock during the term of the
repurchase plan.  Notwithstanding the termination of the repurchase plan, the Board of Directors on October 21, 2013 authorized dividends to be
paid to the Series I Class B and Series II Class B Preferred Stockholders for the third quarter of 2013 as well.  Such dividends were paid on
November 11, 2013 in the total cumulative amount of $57,613.
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Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese manufacturer, have enabled us to increase manufacturing capacity with little capital outlay and
have provided a competitive manufacturing cost.  In the nine months ended September 30, 2013, Double Dove manufactured approximately
73.1% of the units we produced.  In the event that we become unable to purchase product from Double Dove, we would need to find an alternate
supplier for the 0.5mL insulin syringe, the 0.5mL autodisable syringe, and the 5mL and 10mL syringes, and we would increase domestic
production for the 1mL and 3mL syringes.

In 1995, we entered into a license agreement with Thomas J. Shaw for the exclusive right to manufacture, market, and distribute products
utilizing automated retraction technology.  This technology is the subject of various patents and patent applications owned by Mr. Shaw.  The
license agreement generally provides for quarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on gross sales.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit costs have generally tended to decline.  Factors that could affect our unit costs include increases
in costs by third party manufacturers, changing production volumes, costs of petroleum products, and transportation costs.  Increases in such
costs may not be recoverable through price increases of our products.

The following discussion may contain trend information and other forward-looking statements that involve a number of risks and uncertainties. 
Our actual future results could differ materially from our historical results of operations and those discussed in any forward-looking statements. 
Dollar amounts have been rounded for ease of reading.  All period references are to the periods ended September 30, 2013 or 2012.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012

Domestic sales accounted for 80.2% and 75.8% of the revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
Domestic revenues increased 2.7%.  Domestic unit sales increased 8.3% principally due to increased sales volume of the 1mL syringe. 
Domestic unit sales were 72.3% of total unit sales for the three months ended September 30, 2013.  International revenues decreased from $2.3
million in 2012 to $1.8 million in 2013, primarily due to lower 1mL syringe sales.  Overall unit sales decreased 3.2%.

Gross profit decreased 1.1%.  The cost of manufactured product decreased by 4.2% due to lower cost per unit and lower sales volume.  Gross
profit as a percentage of net sales was 36.2% in the three months ended September 30, 2013 as compared to 35.5% in 2012.  Profit margins can
fluctuate depending upon, among other things, the cost of manufactured product and the capitalized cost of product recorded in inventory, as
well as product sales mix.  Royalty expense decreased 3.1% due to a slight decrease in gross sales.

Operating expenses increased 16.2%.  The increase is principally due to additional taxes, other than income taxes, of $298,000, of which
$266,000 is the Medical Device Excise Tax.  Our patent expense also increased, as well and compensation and insurance costs.
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Our operating loss was $825 thousand compared to an operating loss for the same period last year of $211 thousand due primarily to higher
operating costs and marginally lower gross profit.

Our effective tax rate on the net loss before income taxes was (7.1)% and (1.4)% for the three months ended September 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2012, respectively.

Comparison of Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and September 30, 2012

Domestic sales accounted for 76.8% and 77.9% of the revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
Domestic revenues decreased 10.5% principally due to lower 1mL syringe revenues.  Domestic unit sales decreased 0.4%.  Domestic unit sales
were 66.9% of total unit sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2013.  International revenues decreased from $5.7 million in 2012 to
$5.4 million in 2013 primarily due to lower 5mL and 10mL syringe revenues mitigated by higher 1mL syringe revenues.  Overall unit sales
decreased 2.6%.
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Gross profit decreased 17.8% primarily due to lower average sales prices and lower unit sales.  The average cost of manufactured product sold
per unit decreased by 1.6%.  Gross profit as a percentage of net sales was 33.7% in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 as compared to
37.2% in 2012 due to lower average sales prices mitigated by lower cost of manufactured product.  Profit margins can fluctuate depending upon,
among other things, the cost of manufactured product and the capitalized cost of product recorded in inventory, as well as product sales mix. 
Royalty expense decreased 4.6% due to lower gross sales.

Operating expenses increased 13.7% due to higher taxes other than income taxes, primarily attributable to the Medical Device Excise Tax of
$717,000, increased legal fees related to patents, and compensation and insurance costs.

Our operating loss was $4.6 million compared to an operating loss for the same period last year of $1.4 million due primarily to lower gross
profit and higher operating expenses.

Our effective tax rate on the net loss before income taxes was (1.4)% and (1.7)% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and
September 30, 2012, respectively.

Discussion of Balance Sheet and Statement of Cash Flow Items

Our balance sheet remains strong with cash making up 54.6% of total assets.  Working capital was $22.1 million at September 30, 2013, a
decrease of $5.2 million from December 31, 2012.

On September 30, 2013, we received payment of $7,724,826 from BD pursuant to a stipulation in the patent infringement case Retractable
Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company, Civil Action No. 2:07-cv-250, in the U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division.  Such amount is included as cash on the balance sheet and shown as a liability on the balance sheet
under �Litigation proceeds subject to stipulation�.

Approximately $2.9 million in cash flow in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was provided by operating activities.  Our cash balance
increased primarily due to the payment of $7.7 million by BD, mitigated by our Net loss and increases in Inventories and Receivables.

We purchased 655,818 shares of our Common Stock pursuant to our Common Stock repurchase plan in the nine months ended September 30,
2013.  The average share price for our repurchases in the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $1.43.  The repurchase plan was
terminated effective August 30, 2013.

LIQUIDITY
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At the present time, Management does not intend to raise equity capital.  Due to the funds received from prior litigation settlements, we have
sufficient cash reserves and intend to rely on operations, cash reserves, and debt financing as the primary ongoing sources of cash.

Our note to Katie Petroleum was paid in full in September 2012.  Our payments were approximately $37,000 per month.

Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarily from the proceeds from revenues, private placements, litigation settlements, and loans.
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Internal Sources of Liquidity

Margins and Market Access

To routinely achieve break even quarters, we need minimal access to hospital markets which has been difficult to obtain.  We will continue to
attempt to gain access to the market through our sales efforts, innovative technology, the introduction of new products, and, when necessary,
litigation.

We continue to focus on methods of upgrading our manufacturing capability and efficiency in order to reduce costs.

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw materials and inventory and our ability to maintain favorable supplier arrangements and
relationships could result in the need to manufacture all (as opposed to 26.0%) of our products in the U.S.  This could temporarily increase unit
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales affects the average sales price of our products.  Generally, the higher the ratio of domestic sales to
international sales, the higher the average sales price will be.  Typically international sales are shipped directly from China to the customer. 
Purchases of product manufactured in China, if available, usually decrease the average cost of manufacture for all units.  Domestic costs, such as
indirect labor and overhead, remain relatively constant.  The number of units produced by us versus manufactured in China can have a
significant effect on the carrying costs of inventory as well as Cost of sales.  We will continue to evaluate the appropriate mix of products
manufactured domestically and those manufactured in China to achieve economic benefits as well as to maintain our domestic manufacturing
capability.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our products are petroleum based) and transportation and the volume of units purchased from Double Dove
may have an impact on the unit costs of our product.  Increases in such costs may not be recoverable through price increases of our products. 
Reductions in oil prices may not quickly affect petroleum product prices.

Seasonality

Historically, unit sales have increased in the latter part of the year due, in part, to the demand for syringes during the flu season.

Cash Requirements
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Due to funds received from prior litigation settlements, we have sufficient cash reserves and intend to rely on operations, cash reserves, and debt
financing as the primary ongoing sources of cash.  In the event we continue to have only limited market access and cash generated from
operations becomes insufficient to support operations, we would take additional cost cutting measures to reduce cash requirements.  Such
measures could result in the reduction of units being produced, the reduction of workforce, the reduction of salaries of officers and other
nonhourly employees, and the deferral of royalty payments.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans from our inception, which have, together with the proceeds from the sales of equities and litigation efforts,
enabled us to pursue development and production of our products.  Given the current economic conditions, our ability to obtain additional funds
through loans is uncertain.  Furthermore, the shareholders previously authorized an additional 5,000,000 shares of a Class C Preferred Stock that
could, if necessary, be designated and used to raise funds through the sale of equity.  Due to the current market price of our Common Stock, it is
unlikely we would choose to raise funds by the sale of equity.

On September 30, 2013, we received payment of $7,724,826 from BD pursuant to a stipulation in the patent infringement case Retractable
Technologies, Inc. and Thomas Shaw v. Becton Dickinson and Company, Civil Action No. 2:07-cv-250, in the U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Division.  Such amount is included as cash on the balance sheet and shown as a liability on the balance sheet
under �Litigation proceeds subject to stipulation�.
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On September 19, 2013, a Texas jury returned a verdict in our litigation against BD, finding that BD illegally engaged in anticompetitive
conduct with the intent to acquire or maintain monopoly power in the safety syringe market and engaged in false advertising under the Lanham
Act.  The jury awarded us $113,508,014 in damages for the antitrust claim, which is subject to being trebled pursuant to statute.  A final
judgment in this matter has not been entered by the Court yet.  The Court has set a hearing for post-trial motions on December 12, 2013.  BD has
stated that it plans to appeal the verdict.  We have not received the $113,508,014 or any other amounts pursuant to the verdict in the
aforementioned antitrust litigation against BD.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Repurchase of Common Stock

On July 10, 2012, we authorized a Common Stock repurchase plan structured to comply with Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.  Under the plan, we purchased 316,909 and 655,818 shares in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013,
respectively.  The repurchase plan was terminated as of August 30, 2013.

Item 3.   Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

No update.

Item 4.   Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Management, with the participation of our President, Chairman, and Chief
Executive Officer, Thomas J. Shaw (the �CEO�), and our Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Douglas W. Cowan (the �CFO�), acting in
their capacities as our principal executive and principal financial officers, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures,
as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  The term disclosure controls and procedures means controls and other
procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in our periodic reports is: i) recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission�s rules and forms; and ii) accumulated
and communicated to our Management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure. Based upon this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that, as of September 30, 2013, our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
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There have been no changes during the third quarter of 2013 or subsequent to September 30, 2013 in our internal control over financial reporting
that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II�OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.       Legal Proceedings.

Please refer to Note 6 to the financial statements for a complete description of all legal proceedings.

Item 1A.    Risk Factors.

There were no material changes in the Risk Factors applicable to the Company as set forth in our Form 10-K annual report for 2012 which was
filed on April 1, 2013, and which is available on EDGAR.

Item 2.   Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period

Total
Number
of Shares
(or Units)
Purchased

Average
Price

Paid Per
Share
(or
Unit)

Total Number of
Shares (or Units)
Purchased as Part

of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar
Value) of Shares (or
Units) that May Yet
Be Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs

July 1, 2013 through July 31, 2013 150,492 $1.58 150,492 $0
August 1, 2013 through August 31, 2013 166,417 $1.68 166,417 $0
September 1, 2013 through September 30, 2013 � � � $0

TOTAL 316,909 $1.63 316,909 $0

These shares were purchased pursuant to our Common Stock repurchase plan structured to comply with Rules 10b5-1 and 10b-18 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, announced on Form 8-K on July 12, 2012.  On July 10, 2012, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase
of up to $3 million of Common Stock subject to Rule 10b-18 limitations as well as certain market value constraints specified in the plan.  The
plan was terminated as of August 30, 2013.

Edgar Filing: ORACLE CORP - Form 424B2

Table of Contents 72



Working Capital Restrictions and Limitations on the Payment of Dividends

On October 21, 2013, the Board of Directors declared a dividend to the Series I Class B and Series II Class B Convertible Preferred
Shareholders in the aggregate amount of $57,613.  This dividend was paid on November 11, 2013.

The certificates of designation for each of the outstanding series of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock each currently provide that, if a dividend
upon any shares of Preferred Stock is in arrears, no dividends may be paid or declared upon any stock ranking junior to such stock and generally
no junior preferred stock may be redeemed.  However, under certain conditions, and for certain Series of Class B Convertible Preferred Stock,
we may purchase junior stock when dividends are in arrears.

Item 3.       Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Series I Class B Convertible Preferred Stock

As of the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the amount of dividends in arrears was $13,000 and the total arrearage was $13,000.
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Series II Class B Convertible Preferred Stock

As of the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the amount of dividends in arrears was $45,000 and the total arrearage was $45,000.

Series III Class B Convertible Preferred Stock

As of the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the amount of dividends in arrears was $98,000 and the total arrearage was $3,594,000

Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Stock

As of the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the amount of dividends in arrears was $407,000 and the total arrearage was $7,288,000.

Series V Class B Convertible Preferred Stock

As of the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the amount of dividends in arrears was $10,000 and the total arrearage was $939,000.

Item 6.       Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description of Document

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer

32 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

101 The following materials from Retractable Technologies, Inc.�s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013,
formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Condensed Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, (ii) Condensed Statements of Operations for the nine months and three months ended September 30,
2013 and 2012, (iii) Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, and
(iv) Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

DATE:         November 14, 2013 RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

BY: /S/ DOUGLAS W. COWAN
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT,
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, AND
CHIEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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